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UNITED ST A TES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 13-cv-5584 (RRM)(RLM) 

CKB168 HOLDINGS LTD., ET AL. 

Def endants, 

AND -

ROSANNA LS INC., ET AL. 

Relief Defendants. 

f P~JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT WEN CHEN HWANG 
AKA "WENDY LEE" AND RELIEF DEFENDANTS E-STOCK CLUB 

CORP. AND EZ STOCK CLUB CORP. 

The Securities and Exchange Commission (the " SEC" or "Commission") havi ng filed a 

Complaint, and Defendant Wen Chen Hwang aka Wendy Lee ("Defendant") and Relief 

Defendants E-Stock Club Corp. and EZ Stock Club Corp. ("Re lief Defendants") having entered 

a general appearance; consented to the Court's jmisdiction over Defendant and Relief 

De fendants and the subject matter of thi s action; consented to entry of this Judgment; 

acknowledged the CoUJi's adverse findings of fact and conclusions of law in its order granting 

summary judgment against Defendant; and waived any ri ght to appea l from this Judgment: 

I. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant is 

permanently restrained and enj oined from violating, directly or indirectly, Section lO(b) of the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") [ 15 U.S .C. § 78j(b)) and Rule 1 Ob-5 
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promulgated thereunder [ 17 C.F.R. § 240. l Ob-5], by using any means or instrumentality of 

interstate commerce, or of the mails, or of any fac ility of any national securities exchange, in 

connection with the purchase or sale of any security: 

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud; 

(b) to make any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a mate rial fact 

necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances 

under which they were made, not misleading; or 

( c) to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would 

operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in 

Federal Ru le of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who 

receive actua l notice of this Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant's officers, 

agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or 

participation w ith Defendant or with anyone described in (a). 

II. 

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant 

is permanently restrained and enjo ined from violating Section 17(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 

(the "Securities Act") [1 5 U.S.C. § 77q(a)] in the offer or sale of any security by the use of any 

means or instruments of transportation or communication in interstate commerce or by use of the 

mails, directly or indirectly : 

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud; 
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(b) to obtain money or property by means of any untrue statement of a material fact 

or any omission of a material fact necessary in order to make the statements 

made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not mis leading; 

or 

(c) to engage in any transaction, practice, or course of business which operates or 

would operate as a fraud or deceit upon the purchaser. 

TT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in 

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who 

receive actua l notice of this Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant's officers, 

agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or 

participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a). 

III. 

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant 

is permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 5 of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. 

§ 77e] by, directly or indirectly, in the absence of any applicable exemption: 

(a) Unless a registration statement is in effect as to a security, making use of any 

means or instruments of transportation or communication in interstate commerce 

or of the mails to sell such security through the use or medium of any prospectus 

or otherwise; 

(b) Unless a registration statement is in effect as to a security, carrying or causing to 

be ca1Tied through the mail s or in interstate commerce, by any means or 

instruments of transportation, any such security fo r the purpose of sale or for 

delivery after sa le; or 
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(c) Making use of any means or instruments of transportation or communication in 

interstate commerce or of the mails to offer to sell or offer to buy through the use 

or medium of any prospectus or otherwise any security, unless a registration 

statement has been fi led with the Commission as to such security, or w hi le the 

registration statement is the subject of a refusal order or stop order or (prior to the 

effective date of the registration statement) any pub I ic proceeding or examination 

under Section 8 of the Securities Act [15 U .S.C. § 77h]. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in 

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who 

receive actual notice of this Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant' s officers, 

agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or 

participation with Defendant or wi th anyone described in (a). 

IV. 

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant 

is permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section l 5(a) of the Exchange Act [ 15 

U.S.C. § 78o(a)] , by using any means or instrumentality of interstate commerce, or of the mail s, 

to effect any transactions in, or to induce or attempt to induce the purchase or sale of, any 

security (other than an exempted security or commercial paper, bankers' acceptances, or 

commercial bills) unless registered with the Commission as a broker o r dealer or associated with 

a broker or dealer registered with the Commission. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in 

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the fo llowing who 

receive actual notice of thi s Judgment by personal serv ice or otherwise: (a) Defendant's officers, 

4 

Case 1:13-cv-05584-RRM-RLM   Document 396   Filed 09/27/17   Page 4 of 10 PageID #: 7909



Case 1:13-cv-05584-RRM-RLM Document 373 Filed 03/16117 Page 20 of 25 PagelD # : 7703 

agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or 

participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a). 

V. 

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant 

is permanently restrained and enjoined from directly or indirectly, including, but not limited to, 

through any entity owned or controlled by Defendant, offering, operating, or participating in any 

marketing or sales program involving a security, including but not limited to a program in which 

a participant is compensated or promised compensation solely or primarily (I ) for inducing 

another person to become a participant in the program, or (2) if such induced person induces 

another to become a participant in the program. 

VI. 

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant 

and Relief Defendants are liable, jointly and severally, for disgorgement of $2, 11 7, 141, 

representing profits gained as a result of the conduct alleged in the Complaint. Defendant and/or 

Relief Defendants shall sati sfy this obligation by paying $2,117,141 to the Commission within 

365 days after entry of this Judgment. 

Defendant and/or Relief Defendants may transmit payment electronically to the 

Commission, which will provide detailed ACH transfer/Fedwire instructions upon request. 

Payment may also be made directly from a bank account via Pay.gov through the SEC website at 

http://vvww.sec.gov/about/offices/ofm.htm. Defendant and/or Relief Defendants may also pay by 

certified check, bank cashier's check, or United States posta l money order payable to the 

Securities and Exchange Commission, which shall be delivered or mailed to: 

Enterprise Services Center 
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Accounts Receivable Branch 
6500 South MacArthur Boulevard 
Oklahoma City, OK 73169 

and sha ll be accompanied by a letter identifying the case title, civil action number, and name of 

th is Court; Defendant Wendy Lee as a defendant in this action; or E-Stock Club Corp. and EZ 

Stock Clu b Corp. as Relief Defendants in thi s action; and specifying that payment is made 

pursuant to this Judgment. 

Defendant and/or Relief Defendants shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of 

ev idence of payment and case identifying information to the Commission' s counsel in this 

action. By making this payment, Defendant and/or Relief Defendants relinquish all legal and 

equitable right, title, and interest in such fonds and no part of the funds shall be returned to 

Defendant and/or Re lief Defendants. 

The Commission may enforce the Court's judgment for disgorgement by moving for c ivi l 

contempt (and/or through other co llection procedures authorized by law) at any time after 365 

days following entry of this Judgment. Defendant and/or Relief Defendants shall pay post 

judgment interest on any delinquent amounts pursuant to 28 U .S.C. § 1961. The Commission 

shall hold the funds, together with any interest and income earned thereon (collectively, the 

"Fund"), pending further order of the Court. 

The Commission may propose a plan to distribute the Fund subject to the Court's 

approval. Such a plan may provide that the Fund shall be distributed pursuant to the Fair Fund 

provisions of Section 308(a) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of2002. The Court shall retain 

jurisdiction over the administration of any distribution of the Fund. If the Commission staff 

determines that the Fund wi ll not be distributed, the Commission shall send the funds paid 

pursuant to this Judgment to the United States Treasury. 
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Regardl ess of whether any such Fair Fund distribution is made, amounts ordered to be 

paid as civil penalties pursuant to this Judgment shall be treated as penalties paid to the 

government fo r all purposes, including all tax purposes. To preserve the deterrent effect of the 

civi l penalty, Defendant shall not, after offset or reduction of any award of compensatory 

damages in any Related Investor Action based on Defendant 's payment of disgorgement in this 

action, argue that she is enti tled to, nor shall she further benefit by, offset or reduction of such 

compensatory damages award by the amount of any part of Defendant' s payment of a civil 

penalty in this action ("Penalty Offset") . If the court in any Related Investor Action grants such 

a Penalty Offset, Defendant shall, within 30 days after entry of a final order granting the Penalty 

Offset, notify the Commission' s counsel in this action and pay the amount of the Penalty Offset 

to the United States Treasury or to a Fair Fund, as the Commission directs. Such a payment shall 

not be deemed an additional civi l penalty and shall not be deemed to change the amount of the 

civil penalty imposed in this Judgment. For purposes of this paragraph, a "Related Investor 

Action" means a private damages action brought against Defendant by or on behalf of one or 

more investors based on substantially the same facts as alleged in the Complaint in this action. 

VII. 

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED , AND DECREED that Defendant 

shall pay a civi l penalty pursuant to Section 20(d) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77t(d)) and 

Section 2 1(d)(3) of the Exchange Act [1 5 U.S.C. § 78u(d)(3)]. The Cout1 shall determine the 

amounts of the civil penalty upon motion of the Commission. In connection with the 

Commission's motion for civil penalties, and at any hearing held on such a motion: (a) 

Defendant wi ll be precluded from arguing that Defendant did not vio late the federal securities 

laws as alleged in the Complaint; (b) Defendant may not challenge the validity of the Consent or 
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this Judgment; ( c) so lely for the purposes of such motion, the allegations of the Complaint shall 

be accepted as and deemed true by the Court; and (d) the Cow-t may determine the issues raised 

in the motion on the basis of affidavits, declarations, excerpts of sworn deposition or 

investigative testimony, and documentary evidence, without regard to the standards fo r summary 

judgment contained in Rule 56(c) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. In connection with 

the Commission ' s motion for civi l penalties, the parties may take discove1y, including discovery 

from appropriate non-parties. 

VIII. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, A D DECREED that the Consent is 

incorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein, and that Defendant 

and Relief Defendants shall comply with all of the undertakings and agreements set forth therein, 

including, but not limited to, the undertak ings to: 

(a) Within 28 days after entry of the Judgment, effectuate transfer to the Commission 

of any and all assets held in the name of Defendant or Relief Defendants, or fo r their benefit, at 

any financial or brokerage institution, to be applied to the Judgment entered aga inst Defendant 

and Relief Defendants. However, Defendant will not be required to transfer to the Commission 

at that time those funds held in the bank account ending in 8514, which is held at East West 

Bank; 

(b) Within 260 days after entry of the Judgment, with respect to any real property 

held in her name or for her benefit, Defendant will make good fa ith efforts to effectuate the sale 

of such property to a bona fide purchaser for a fair value. Defendant shall be required to obtain 

the approval of counsel for the Commission prior to any such sale. Defendant agrees that she 
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shall sign any documents necessary to ev idence the Commission's interest in such assets, 

including, but not limited to, any liens, deeds, or mortgages; 

( c) Within 5 days of the closing of the sale of any such asset, she shall deli ver the sale 

proceeds (afte r reasonable costs/expenses, mortgages, and bona fide liens) to the Commission to 

be applied to the Judgment entered against Defendant; and 

( d) Within 365 days after entry of the Judgment, Defendant and/or Relief Defendants 

shall pay the balance of the di sgorgement, plus all post judgment interest accrued. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the current order 

freezing Defendant's and Relief Defendants' assets shall be li fted to the extent necessary so that 

Defendant and Relief Defendant may comply with the requirements of this Judgment. 

IX. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, for purposes of 

exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U .S.C. §523, the 

allegations in the complaint are true and ad mitted by Defendant, and further, any debt for 

disgorgement, civi l pena lty or other amounts due by Defendant under this Judgment or any other 

judgment, order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement entered in connection with this 

proceeding, is a debt for the violation by Defendant of the federal securi ties laws or any 

regulation or order issued under such laws, as set forth in Section 523(a)( 19) of the Bankruptcy 

Code, 11 U.S.C. §523(a)( l 9). 

X. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes or enforcing the terms of this Judgment. 
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XI. 

There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure, the Clerk is ordered to enter this Judgment forthwith and without further notice. 

Dated: _ fu__,,_.A-__ J-_7 ___ , 2017 

UNITED STATES DISTRJCT JUDGE 
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s/Roslynn R. Mauskopf
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